



C/O: Centre for International Programmes & Links
Main Campus Gandhi Wing 2ndFloor, Room 213
P.O.Box 30197-00100 GPO
E-mail: uonisa@students.uonbi.ac.ke

THE CONSTITUTION OF UNIVERSITY OF NAIROBI INTERNATIONAL STUDENT'S ASSOCIATION (OCTOBER 2015)

Preamble

We the International Students of the University of Nairobi, Kenya having resolved by the founding members and the Steering Committee officers on 24th April 2008, to establish the University of Nairobi International Students Association, hereinafter referred to as '**UoNISA**' generally or '**the Association**' in this constitution, whose core mandate shall be to develop, promote, and safeguard the academic wellbeing, social welfare and security of life and tangible properties of registered members of the Association, as they undergo their programs at the University of Nairobi Kenya.

We hereby establish this new constitution as recommended by the entire membership of UoNISA through the Steering Committee and Centre for International Programmes and Links officers on 26st May 2015, and hereby confirm that this Constitution has been reviewed and accepted by the University of Nairobi Administration in October 2015.

PART 1- NAME

Schedule 1.1. Article 1- Name

The official name of the association shall be the **University of Nairobi International Students Association**, hereinafter known and referred to as **UoNISA** and thereafter called '**the Association**'.

Schedule 1.2. Article 2- Logo

The official logo and emblem (Appendix 1) of **UoNISA** is attached as indicated:



PART 2- OBJECTIVES

Article 3-Main Objective

The core mandate, mission and purpose of the Association originated after the Steering Committee officers meeting of 24th April 2008. UoNISA was established primarily to work closely with Centre for International Programmes and Links or 'CIPL' to develop, promote and safeguard the academic wellbeing, social



C/O: Centre for International Programmes & Links
Main Campus Gandhi Wing 2ndFloor, Room 213
P.O.Box 30197-00100 GPO
E-mail: uonisa@students.uonbi.ac.ke

welfare and security of life and properties of all registered International Students of the Association, who are studying for various programs at the University of Nairobi, Kenya.

Article 4- Specific Objectives of UoNISA and CIPL

Schedule 2.1

- a) To represent and further the interest and welfare of international students at the University of Nairobi, and engage co-operatively with other international student groups across Kenya.
- b) To seek and undertake representation and/or participation in the organs of the university and wider communities.
- c) To promote and enhance international awareness, co-operations, cultural diversity and dialogue among international students, and between international students and Kenyan students at the University of Nairobi campuses and the wider communities.
- d) To assist international students in their transition to the new atmosphere at the University of Nairobi and the nation state of Kenya.
- e) To promote, advocate and advance the international students' rights, interests and privileges in Kenya.
- f) To act as an 'umbrella' association for the international and multicultural student groups at the University of Nairobi.
- g) Any other activities as deemed necessary and appropriate by the Governing Board of UoNISA.

Schedule 2.2. Centre for International Programs and Links (CIPL) shall:

- a) Serve as a major link of immediate support for UoNISA, International agencies and the University of Nairobi administration.
- b) CIPL shall assist in setting up an administrative unit for the Association.
- c) Shall submit the name of a senior member to the highest governing Board of UoNISA, which is chaired by the Patron or Matron.
- d) Co-ordinate and help organize the induction and continuous training program for all registered members of the Association.
- e) Provide other services and responsibilities as advised by the University Senate.



C/O: Centre for International Programmes & Links
Main Campus Gandhi Wing 2ndFloor, Room 213
P.O.Box 30197-00100 GPO
E-mail: uonisa@students.uonbi.ac.ke

Schedule 2.3- UoNISA Meetings

- a. 'AGM' means Annual General meeting
- b. 'SGM' means Special General meeting
- c. 'GBM' means Governing Board meeting
- d. 'ECM' means Executive Council meeting
- e. 'SCM' means Special Committee meeting
- f. 'CCM' means College Council meeting
- g. 'GBSM' means Governing Board Strategy meeting
- h. "GISM" means Global International Students Meeting

PART 3- DEFINITION OF MEMBERSHIP GROUPS

Schedule 3.1- International Student Members

The bonafide members of UoNISA are termed 'International Students', defined as non-Kenyan registered students of the University of Nairobi, who must have paid the minimum annual registration fees of UoNISA and regularly promotes and identifies with the objectives and mandate of the Association.

Ordinary bonafide membership shall be open to all international students at University of Nairobi upon payment of the annual subscription fee of ten dollars (USD10 p.a) or real-time equivalent in Kenyan currency or such amount as may be approved from time to time by the General Congress of members at the AGM or SGM.

Schedule 3.2- Honorary Members

A foreigner, who is an ex-student of the University of Nairobi, shall be registered as an Honorary member upon fulfilling the terms of such membership.

Honorary membership shall be open to persons from the University of Nairobi community upon payment of the annual subscription fee of fifty five dollars (USD 50 p.a) or real-time equivalent in Kenyan currency or such amount as may be approved from time to time by the General Congress of members.



C/O: Centre for International Programmes & Links
Main Campus Gandhi Wing 2ndFloor, Room 213
P.O.Box 30197-00100 GPO
E-mail: uonisa@students.uonbi.ac.ke

Schedule 3.3- Membership Covenants

- a. All membership groups shall be open only to all persons upon fulfillment of the conditions of UoNISA membership.
- b. The two classes of membership in the Association shall not be deemed permanent or acquired for personal benefit. The rights, privileges and responsibilities of membership groups may be deferred, suspended or withdrawn permanently, as approved in strict adherence to certain provisions under this constitution by the full quorum of the Governing Board of UoNISA.
- c. In exercise of membership rights and responsibilities, due cognizance shall be considered with respect to internal policies by the Executive Council. Bonafide members shall remain the primary custodian of the mandate of UoNISA.

Part 4- LEGAL STATUS AND RESPONSIBILITIES OF UoNISA

Article 5- Status of Registration

Schedule 4.1

- a. The University of Nairobi International Students Association was fully registered by the University of Nairobi, since 2009/2010 as an approved University Association. We shall abide by the applicable rules and regulations of the University of Nairobi regarding independent student Associations.
- b. UoNISA shall maintain the status of an apolitical, non-religious, non-discriminatory (on basis of race, nationality, gender, color, creed, disability/ability or doctrinal beliefs) professional association, serving the needs of her members as a non-profit making Association as defined by the Laws of Kenya.
- c. The Association may review its operational guidelines, using policies and programs approved by the Governing Board, comprising of the Association's Patron or Matron (as advisory head), elected Chairperson or



C/O: Centre for International Programmes & Links
Main Campus Gandhi Wing 2ndFloor, Room 213
P.O.Box 30197-00100 GPO
E-mail: uonisa@students.uonbi.ac.ke

designate and a senior officer representing the Centre for International Programmes and Links.

- d. In view of the continuous scarcity of resources required for welfare programs, and considering the establishment of independent income sources by the University of Nairobi, UoNISA shall after conducting due diligence, establish independent income generating ventures to improve the economic needs of selected members. Interested members shall develop world-class sustainable management structures to independently manage such enterprises in a transparent and efficient manner.

Article 6: Rights, Privileges and duties of members

Schedule 4.2- Bonafide members

- a. Subject to the clauses in Part 3 of this constitution, a bonafide registered member can seek election to any office or position established under this constitution (apart from that of the Governing Board) and shall also be entitled to vote at UoNISA elections.
- b. Forming part of the two thirds majority votes of registered members, a bonafide member may petition the Chairperson through the Congress Secretary to hold either an AGM (not more than twice every calender year) or SGM (during an approved academic session), with not less than five days' notice of meeting.
- c. A bonafide member shall have the right to access general and restricted information relating to the affairs of the association.
- d. A bonafide member shall have the right to take part in all legitimate activities organized and run by the association as defined at the Executive Council.

Schedule 4.3- Honorary members

- a. Subject to the clauses in Part 3 of this constitution and the approved UoNISA policies, upon obtaining valid signatures of two thirds of registered bonafide members, an honorary registered member may petition the Chairperson, through the Congress Secretary to hold an emergency AGM or SGM (as per conditions provided in Schedule 4.2.b).



C/O: Centre for International Programmes & Links
Main Campus Gandhi Wing 2ndFloor, Room 213
P.O.Box 30197-00100 GPO
E-mail: uonisa@students.uonbi.ac.ke

- b. An honorary member, after having served meritoriously for not more than two years in the Executive Council, Special Committees or College Councils of the Association, may be re-appointed into any other elective office of UoNISA, for another maximum tenure of three years (renewable yearly). The subsequent appointments shall be effective by the resolutions passed by two third (2/3) majority of both the Executive Council and General Congress members of the association.
- c. An honorary member shall have the right to take part in all legitimate activities organized and run by the association, as defined by the Executive Council.

Schedule 4.4 Duties of Members

- a. All members must maintain professional and ethical conduct, as defined by acceptable International, National and University of Nairobi code of conduct, conventions and practices. They are also obligated to promote and defend the core mandate, objectives and internal policies of UoNISA and this constitution.
- b. All members must attend at least once every calendar year, either or all of our statutory meetings, i.e. Annual General Meetings, Special General meetings, College Council meetings and Global International Students Meeting, and participate fully in the activities of the association whenever called upon.
- c. The participation records of members during these session meetings shall be kept confidential and may be reported annually by the Executive Council during the AGM or SGM.
- d. Failure of members to abide by membership duties listed herein, shall incur disciplinary sanctions such as deferral, suspension or termination of membership rights and privileges as approved by the Governing Board under the provisions of this Constitution.



C/O: Centre for International Programmes & Links
Main Campus Gandhi Wing 2ndFloor, Room 213
P.O.Box 30197-00100 GPO
E-mail: uonisa@students.uonbi.ac.ke

Schedule 4.6- Natural Cessation of membership

As applicable, specific groups of membership shall cease when any or all of the following situations occur;

- a) Upon completion of the study program at the University of Nairobi, or voluntary resignation in writing prior to such completion, or dormancy/nonchalance in observing statutory duties or prolonged delays in payments (on or before 31st March every calendar year), which attracts a US\$2 dollars re-admittance levy after due date.
- b) Ceases to be a student on account of death, expulsion or discontinuation by the University or any other reason including mental infirmity as certified by the Chief medical officer of the University of Nairobi.
- c) Where a member is disqualified under any written law or their continued membership is deemed by the Governing Board as being in any way detrimental to the progress of the Association and/or the University of Nairobi.

Schedule 4.7- Suspension or Termination of Membership

The Governing Board, after considering recommendations from the Executive Council or registered members at the AGM or SGM, may suspend and/or de-list registration of any category of memberships of the association on the grounds that their conduct has adversely affected the reputation or dignity of UoNISA and the University or such persons have contravened any provisions of this Constitution.

PROVIDED that a member whose proposed suspension or termination shall have the right to fair hearing by an independent Committee of UoNISA, including the right to appear and address, submit, and call witness or any other conduct consistent with the rules of natural justice and in accordance with the letter and spirit of this constitution.

PROVIDED further that such member shall not refuse to submit themselves willingly to the jurisdiction and governance of the Association, and such suspension or expulsion is not waived or deferred in writing by the University of Nairobi Senate Council.



C/O: Centre for International Programmes & Links
Main Campus Gandhi Wing 2ndFloor, Room 213
P.O.Box 30197-00100 GPO
E-mail: uonisa@students.uonbi.ac.ke

PART 5- ARTICLE 7

Schedule 5.1- Governing Board Officials and duties

Governing Board

- The Governance Board shall be the chief custodian and promoter of UoNISA mandate. They would ensure that all elected or nominated officials of UoNISA perform their duties as stipulated in the UoNISA Constitution, and shall ratify all internal and external Memorandum of Understanding documents and agreements which are binding on UoNISA.
- Shall be charged with overseeing the smooth transition of all new officers of UoNISA. Introduction of contestants, screening interviews and confirmation of applicants before proceeding to canvass for votes and subsequent training of new officers shall be managed by the Governing Board not later than one month before the date of final elections at the AGM or SGM.
- Shall resolve all grave disputes and concerns from registered members (duly received confidentially in writing), arising from an election process, and ensure that healthy Governance is practiced transparently and efficiently in UoNISA.

Three Board Officials

5.1. a. The Patron (male) or Matron (female) shall be an honorary staff member of the Association, and chair all functional meetings of the Governing Board and/or the Governing Board Strategy meeting. This person shall be proposed by the Executive Council (or Steering Committee) in consultation with the Director of the Centre of International Programmes and Links.

5.1.b. The CIPL shall propose and obtain approval from the University Administration for one of their senior members to be a permanent representative in the Governing Board of UoNISA.

5.1.c. The Chairperson or designate from the Executive Council shall serve as the Secretary of the Governing Board, and will be charged with the responsibility to execute their mandates.



C/O: Centre for International Programmes & Links
Main Campus Gandhi Wing 2ndFloor, Room 213
P.O.Box 30197-00100 GPO
E-mail: uonisa@students.uonbi.ac.ke

Schedule 5.2: The Executive Council Officials and duties

5.2. The Chairperson

- a. The Chairperson is the Secretary to the Governing Board, Head of the Executive council and Chief spokesperson of UoNISA.
- b. Shall call, preside or designate responsibilities over all official UoNISA meetings as listed in this constitution, as per schedule 2.3A, B, D, E & F.
- c. Break all tie votes, or suspend debate on non-personal issues till further notice.
- d. Report on progress of UoNISA periodically at general meetings.
- e. Shall be expected to supervise the officers of the Executive Council, and coordinate the administration of UoNISA programs and policies.
- f. Promote, defend, and enforce the mandates and constitution of UoNISA.
- g. Oversee the day-to-day business of UoNISA, and reserve the power to recommend and approve disciplinary actions, till further actions are taken at the Governing Board.
- h. Shall, with the Executive council secretary and Treasurer, be the principal signatory to all UoNISA bank accounts, cheque(s) and other negotiable instruments.

5.3. Vice Chairperson

- a. Shall on account of written approval by the Governing Board, assume the responsibilities of the Chairperson upon his/her temporary absence, suspension or resignation.
- b. Directly supervise the affairs of all College Councils, assume responsibility for external fundraising activities, community development projects, and assist the Chairperson in all tasks as and when necessary throughout his/her term in office.
- c. In consultation with the Chairperson and Treasurer, and special committees, shall be in charge of welfare programs of the association.
- d. Ensure attendance and arrangement of venue of all official meetings of the association, at least thirty minutes before meeting starts, unless prevented by sufficient reason made known early to the executive council members.



C/O: Centre for International Programmes & Links
Main Campus Gandhi Wing 2ndFloor, Room 213
P.O.Box 30197-00100 GPO
E-mail: uonisa@students.uonbi.ac.ke

5.4. Executive Secretary

- a. Shall be in charge of all administrative (internal & external) affairs of the association and keep confidential records in a secured office location, pertaining to the executive council, special committees, College council and general meetings.
- b. Shall be in charge of promoting and authenticating membership attendance, and serve notification of general meetings.
- c. The Executive Secretary also referred to as Congress Secretary shall develop and manage the Association's partnership, training and logistics support programs, in addition to attending selected functions as may be authorized by the Chairperson.
- d. Shall maintain the membership register and shall be in charge of processing event invitations, protocol services, public relations and correspondence affairs of the Association.
- e. Supervise directly all bureaucratic and policy implementation matters within the Association and ensure that an accurate copy of our policies and constitution is kept safely, circulated as appropriate, and open for inspection to registered members of the association.
- f. Shall inform registered members about current events and activities.
- g. Together with the Chairperson and treasurer, shall be a signatory to all UoNISA bank accounts, cheque(s) and other negotiable instruments.

5.5 Treasurer

- a. Shall ensure that proper universally acceptable accounting procedures are adhered to, and supervise the processing, filing and publishing of all financial records of UoNISA.
- b. In consultation with special committees and external consultants approved by the Governing Board, shall maintain accurate and up-to-date accounts of assets and liabilities of the Association.
- c. Shall prepare, explain and defend a working budget for the Association, and shall be the primary custodian of operational funds and authorize petty cash expenditure.
- d. Keep track of membership continuous registration fees and contributions, while ensuring the issuance and renewal of membership cards and passes.
- e. Together with the Chairperson and Secretary, shall be a signatory to all UoNISA bank accounts, cheque(s) and other negotiable instruments.



C/O: Centre for International Programmes & Links
Main Campus Gandhi Wing 2ndFloor, Room 213
P.O.Box 30197-00100 GPO
E-mail: uonisa@students.uonbi.ac.ke

- f. In consultation with the Chairperson shall direct resource mobilization and jointly oversee the management of funds disbursed to the full governance council of UoNISA.

5.6. Projects Leader

- a. Shall be responsible for diverse duties in the Association, and offer relief support for duties of either the Secretary or Treasurer.
- b. Supports the Vice Chairperson, to ensure the actualization of all UoNISA policy programs.
- c. In conjunction with the Chairperson and Secretary, shall engage the Special Committees and College Councils in drawing up their program of activities.
- d. Provide leadership as chief event promoter at association meetings, unless prevented by sufficient reason made known early to the executive head.
- e. Co-ordinate and promote awareness of UoNISA programs within and outside the campus community.
- f. Publicize all UoNISA events, programs, and activities through diverse methods, e.g. electronic or non-electronic forum (social media, journals, local and international media, publications, newsletters, and others).
- g. Shall also promote mutually beneficial academic, socio-cultural and leadership development programs in conjunction with CIPL and promote partnerships with other international associations, clubs, societies and government agencies within and outside of the University community.
- h. Shall oversee the management of our independent income generating projects and any other community development programs.

Schedule 5.7- The Special Committees

- a. The Executive Council officers shall delegate as much of their responsibility as permitted by the Governing Board to the three Special Committees created under this constitution, which are; Steering Committee, Administrative and Disciplinary Committee and Welfare Committee.
- b. The members of the special committees shall be appointed by the Governing Board based on nominations received from membership.



C/O: Centre for International Programmes & Links
Main Campus Gandhi Wing 2ndFloor, Room 213
P.O.Box 30197-00100 GPO
E-mail: uonisa@students.uonbi.ac.ke

Each committee shall receive flexible policy programs and direction from the Governing Board members, and shall be supervised by the Executive Council.

- c. The sole purpose of establishing these three committees is to ensure continuity and stability of the Executive Council duties, as well as advance service excellence culture and diversity of UoNISA activities.
- d. The minimum membership of each of the three committees is five persons, while the maximum tenure of members is three years (subject to annual or periodic re-elections, at every AGM or SGM).

Schedule 5.8- College Council

The Executive Council of the Association shall appoint a minimum of three registered members as College advisers from each of the six colleges approved by the University of Nairobi Senate Council, as listed;

- College of Agriculture and Veterinary Sciences (CAVS)
- College of Architecture and Engineering (CAE)
- College of Biological and Physical Sciences (CBPS)
- College of Education and External Studies (CEES)
- College of Health Sciences (CHS)
- College of Humanities and Social Sciences (CHSS)

The major responsibilities of College Councils shall include;

- a. Organization of events within their respective colleges in co-ordination with the Executive council and CIPL for membership induction and welfare programs.
- b. Assisting the individual members to settle into their various colleges and the university system by providing tailor-made support in resolving administrative problems which may arise within the first two years of academic work.
- c. To assist the Executive Council members in resource mobilization and membership registration drive and management of specific college projects throughout the year.
- d. The maximum tenure of the College Council advisers shall be two years, which is renewable annually on satisfactory performance by the Chairperson.



C/O: Centre for International Programmes & Links
Main Campus Gandhi Wing 2ndFloor, Room 213
P.O.Box 30197-00100 GPO
E-mail: uonisa@students.uonbi.ac.ke

PART 6- ARTICLE 8

Section 6.1: The Governance Council Composition

6.1. The Governing Council Composition of UoNISA is ranked in hierarchy as follows;

- a. The Governing Board: Patron or Matron, CIPL senior representative and Chairperson or designate.
- b. The Executive Council
- c. The Three Special Committees: Steering, Administrative & Disciplinary and Welfare.
- d. The Six College Council Advisory Committee.

The major policy objectives and considerations of the full Governing Council are;

- a. Relating with and sharing information with other University Associations and Student Organization of Nairobi University (SONU) on matters of mutual interest.
- b. Fostering a good working relationship for UoNISA with the University community, the national community and International community.
- c. Promoting the principles of equity in diversity in matters affecting international students at the University of Nairobi and in the country.
- d. The full Governance Council shall meet at least twice every calendar year to promote these objectives.
- e. All members of the governing council, other than the Patron and/or Chairperson may cast one vote at this meeting, but the Patron or Chairperson may not exercise a vote except in the event of a tie, may exercise the right to a deciding vote.
- f. The powers of the full governing council shall be defined and limited by this constitution, and policies or regulations passed at the AGM.
- g. The Quorum of the governance council shall be fifty percent plus one.
- h. No person may hold more than one permanent executive position in the governing council groups at any one time.
- i. As may be deemed necessary by unforeseen events, every interim or acting position in the Executive Council, Special Committees and College councils shall not exceed ninety calendar days from the approval date.



C/O: Centre for International Programmes & Links
Main Campus Gandhi Wing 2ndFloor, Room 213
P.O.Box 30197-00100 GPO
E-mail: uonisa@students.uonbi.ac.ke

- j. In selecting governance council membership structure, every effort should be made to reflect the international diversity and non-discriminatory membership principles of the Association.

PART 7: ARTICLE 9

Section 7.1: Procedure for AGM, SGM and GISM Elections

- a. Annual General meeting (AGM)
- b. Special General Meetings (SGM)
- c. Global International Students meetings (GISM)

Section 7.1: Annual General Meeting (AGM)

This shall be held not later than three weeks before the official close or six weeks after the official resumption of the University of Nairobi approved calendar year. There shall be a written pre-notice advice to registered members (e-mail and publications in social or print media acceptable) of such Annual General meetings, accompanied by the following;

- The Executive Council or Steering Committee financial reports (where applicable).
- The agenda and notification of AGM to the University Administration through CIPL not less than five (5) days before the official date of the AGM.

The draft agenda for any general meeting may consist of the following:

- a. Matters arising from the minutes of previous AGM.
- b. Confirmation of the minutes of the previous AGM.
- c. Tabling of annual progress reports and financial statement of accounts.
- d. Consideration and adoption of annual progress reports and statement of accounts.
- e. Special business of the day proposed by a quorum of registered members or by the leadership of the Executive Council.
- f. Any other business proposed by the Governance Board
- g. Vote of thanks, Adjournment and Closing of meeting.



C/O: Centre for International Programmes & Links
Main Campus Gandhi Wing 2ndFloor, Room 213
P.O.Box 30197-00100 GPO
E-mail: uonisa@students.uonbi.ac.ke

Section 7.2- Special General Meeting

The procedure for a special general meeting shall follow that of the Annual General Meeting, as mentioned in Section 7.1 provided such matters resolved were not previously successful at the first AGM of the academic year.

Section 7.3- Global International Students Meeting

The Executive council shall provide special policies to guide activities of UoNISA members at external forum of international students. The procedure should not differ substantially from Section 7.1.

Section 7.4- General procedure of Elections of Officers

- a) Elections of the executive council shall take place during the Annual General Meeting or may be deferred to the Special General meeting as may be resolved by the majority of registered members.
- b) Introduction of contestants, screening, interviews, and confirmation of applicants, canvassing of votes and training by the Governing Board shall commence not later than one month before date of final elections is confirmed.
- c) The returning officer(s) shall be requested from the University of Nairobi, through the Centre for International Programs and Links (CIPL) or Governing Board.
- d) All registered members approved for elective offices by the Governing Board for the calendar year are entitled to stand electable for relevant positions within the Governance council structure. A minimum of one suitable semester academic year reference is required for qualification to stand for elections into governance groups.
- e) Any registered member willing to stand for elections into Executive council offices must have been proposed in writing by at least six registered members-one proposal from each of all the six approved colleges. The completed nomination forms must be submitted to the Governing Board at least one month before date of elections. The nominees must all be present at the time of the election.
- f) Voting shall be done by either show of hands or secret ballot papers, with two independent members chosen by the returning officer (s) allowed to do the counting. The governing Board may change the mode of voting as may be deemed necessary from time to time.



C/O: Centre for International Programmes & Links
Main Campus Gandhi Wing 2ndFloor, Room 213
P.O.Box 30197-00100 GPO
E-mail: uonisa@students.uonbi.ac.ke

- g) The returning officer (s) announces the successful candidates who have been duly elected. The final results shall be notified to all UoNISA members immediately and the University Council by the next two to three working days following elections.
- h) All grave disputes and concerns from registered members arising from an election process must be done in writing to the Governing Board, indicating the issues, providing supporting evidences and reasonable recommendations.
- i) The conclusion of election process by handing over files and records from the old to new governance members, after verification and addressing of dispute matters by Governing Board shall take place not later than five working days after submission of final results to the Governing Board.

PART 8 ARTICLE 10: Management of Finances

Section 8.1- Finance Sources

- a. Compulsory registration fees for different categories of members of the association.
- b. Periodic funding from the University of Nairobi.
- c. Internal and external fundraising activities.
- d. Special grants, donations and proceeds from various ventures of the Association or through our sponsors and partners.
- e. Any other source that may be deemed necessary or acceptable by the Governing Board.
- f. The executive council shall be responsible for the management and handling of all financial resources of the Association, and shall be guided by existing UON's Financial Management policies and other directions from the Governing Board.



C/O: Centre for International Programmes & Links
Main Campus Gandhi Wing 2ndFloor, Room 213
P.O.Box 30197-00100 GPO
E-mail: uonisa@students.uonbi.ac.ke

PART 9 ARTICLE 11: Amendment/Review of UoNISA Constitution & Policies

Section 9.1: Amendments/review of Constitution and Policies

This new constitution upon approval by the University of Nairobi administration, shall be binding on all affairs, operations and membership of UoNISA, but the constitution is not binding unto itself.

A registered member can submit in writing justifiable amendments to this constitution in which case:

- a) The proposer shall be a continuing international student, and shall receive the support of at least 1/3rd of registered members of the Association.
- b) A minimum of twenty one (21) days' notice in writing before end of calendar year is served on the Executive Council, and the detailed amendment, included with supporting comments.
- c) The amendment shall be discussed at the Governing Board level, and agreed by simple majority (50% plus 1), and thereafter submitted to a special committee for further actions.
- d) The Executive Council may choose to appoint members of the three special joint committees to review and approve proposed amendments to existing general policies or Constitution, and may also seek counsel from external legal or financial consultants.
- e) The review committee shall report back to the full Governing Board, which shall table the recommendations to members at the next Annual general meeting or special general meeting. The review shall be passed upon attainment of support by seventy five percent (3/4) of majority votes of registered members present at the general meeting.

PART 10 ARTICLE 12: Dormancy & Dissolution of UoNISA

Section 10.1- Dormancy Conditions

The University of Nairobi International Student's Associations shall remain dormant or inactive if the following occurs;

- a. Prolonged strike or lock-outs and inability of the University of Nairobi to reconvene full academic programs for a period of more than three (3) months.



C/O: Centre for International Programmes & Links
Main Campus Gandhi Wing 2ndFloor, Room 213
P.O.Box 30197-00100 GPO
E-mail: uonisa@students.uonbi.ac.ke

- b. Whenever a serious dispute arises, affecting 2/3rd of registered members which cannot be amicably resolved by the Governing Council or the University of Nairobi Senate.
- c. If at least 2/3rd of previously registered members of UoNISA decline to fulfill their membership obligations as mentioned in this Constitution for a period exceeding sixty (60) days after reconvening the full calendar year.

During rare cases of dormancy, the Governing Board shall undertake to secure the assets and general well-being of UoNISA until the issues are fully resolved.

Section 10.2- Dissolution Procedure

UoNISA shall not be dissolved except by resolution passed at an annual general meeting of registered members by a quorum vote of not less than seventy five percent of members present, provided an initial notification of dissolution of UoNISA by 1/3rd of registered members has been served in writing on the Governing Board of UoNISA and subsequent approval for a returning officer has been processed by the University of Nairobi Senate Council.

If no quorum is obtained, the proposal to dissolve the association shall be submitted to another general meeting, which shall be held one month later. Notice of this meeting shall be given to all members of the association at least fourteen (14) days before the date of the meeting. The quorum for this second meeting shall be the seventy five percent of registered members present at the first meeting. If the subsequent general meeting fails to pass such resolution for dissolving the association, this motion shall be terminated permanently.

Only bonafide and Honorary members of UoNISA shall be permitted to conclude the motion for dissolution of the Association.



C/O: Centre for International Programmes & Links
 Main Campus Gandhi Wing 2ndFloor, Room 213
 P.O.Box 30197-00100 GPO
 E-mail: uonisa@students.uonbi.ac.ke

Part 11 Section 11: Right of Honor

Upon approval of this constitution by the University of Nairobi administration, we propose that the persons mentioned below should be accepted as **Honorary Members of UoNISA**, having been instrumental to her establishment.

They shall be awarded the full benefits of being Honorary members as provided for in this constitution. We hereby waive permanently their annual fee payments, except any voluntary contributions to UoNISA.

Steering Committee Officers- April 2008

- | | |
|---------------------------------|------------|
| 1. Mugabo Rajab Mustafa | - Rwandese |
| 2. Nchunga Hilda Bontshwangeise | - Botswana |
| 3. Onen Mary Cathy | - Ugandan |
| 4. MlombeYohannie Billy | - Malawian |
| 5. Itwari Anna Felix | - Sudanese |
| 6. Aiyambo Elias | - Namibian |
| 7. BuongMatual James | - Sudanese |
| 8. Charles Byamugisho | - Ugandan |

UoNISA First Patron

9. Professor Jacob Kaimenyi

Approval Information:

Name	Official Title	Signature	Date